GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

CARE, HEALTH AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING

Tuesday, 25 April 2017

PRESENT: Councillor N Weatherley (Chair)

Councillor(s): M Charlton, W Dick, M Hood, J Kielty,

R Mullen, I Patterson, J Wallace, A Wheeler and D Bradford

IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor(s):

APOLOGIES: Councillor(s): C Bradley, D Davidson, K Ferdinand,

B Goldsworthy, M Goldsworthy and J Simpson

CHW36 MINUTES

CHW37 NEAS - GATESHEAD PERFORMANCE PROGRESS UPDATE

The Committee received a presentation from Paul Liversidge, Chief Operating Officer at NEAS and Elaine Criddle, ECIP Programme Manager, County Durham and Darlington Local A&E Delivery Board which provided an overview and update on NEAS performance in Gateshead. The presentation also provided an update on Hospital Diverts and Deflects and the measures being put in place to alleviate the pressures.

RESOLVED - that the information be noted.

CHW38 OSC REVIEW - FINAL REPORT

The Committee received the draft final report in the review of the Role of Housing in Improving Health and Wellbeing.

The Committee has undertaken three evidence gathering sessions which were themed according to the three strands of the Council's Housing Strategy of:-

- Housing Standards
- Housing Supply
- Housing Support

The Committee also took part in a focus group for elected members to facilitate the submission of evidence to the review.

The Committee were advised that as a result the following recommendations arose out of the review:-

 Review the actions set out in the Housing Intervention Action Plan, and, where appropriate, provide Public Health support to assist in maximising the benefits to health arising from delivering elements of the Plan. The evidence presented in the review identifies priority candidate elements with the greatest potential to improve health and wellbeing.

- Ensure that improving health and wellbeing is reflected in the production of local development plan documents (i.e. Making Spaces for Growing Places).
- Review how health and wellbeing is reflected in Council Letting Policies and TGHC support services (i.e. Health criteria, preventative interventions).
- Assess the current range of Council private sector housing interventions to maximise their contribution to health and wellbeing (including energy efficiency programmes, private landlord accreditation, selective landlord licensing, financial assistance programmes, falls prevention, making every contact count).
- Undertake actions to ensure that the greatest proportion of Council housing is maintained to a standard that secures the health and wellbeing of residents within the context of changes to revenue and capital funding.
- Determine the circumstances where the council seeks to ensure that high design and space standards are delivered, including accessibility.
- Determine the need for, location of and processes to deliver adequate levels of supported, specialist, and older persons housing.
 - RESOLVED i) That
- That the information be noted
 - ii) That the final report and recommendations be submitted to Cabinet for consideration

CHW39 GATESHEAD HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - PROGRESS UPDATE

The Committee received a report providing a progress update on the work of the Gateshead Health & Wellbeing Board for the six month period October 2016 to March 2017.

Committee were advised of the following key issues that were considered by the Health and Wellbeing Board:-

- Health Needs Assessment of the black and minority ethnic (BME) population in Gateshead.
- Director of Public Health Annual Report 2015/16
- Strategic and Operational Plans
- NECA Commission Report 'Health and Wealth'
- Performance Management Framework
- Assurance Agenda

The Board also considered the following:-

- Community Health Services: mobilisation and transformation
- Gateshead Council's Budget Proposals 2017/18
- Statement of Intent: 'Delivering Better Health & Social Care Outcomes for Newcastle and Gateshead'
- Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) Work Programmes for 2017-18
- Gateshead Cancer Locality Group Work Programme
- Gateshead SEND Inspection and Joint Commissioning Arrangements
- Time to Change Hub Bid
- Various information items

RESOLVED – that the information be noted

CHW40 REVIEW OF GP ACCESS - SECOND PROGRESS UPDATE REPORT

The Committee received a report which provided the second update on progress made against recommendations and action identified from the review of GP Access in Gateshead.

Access to GP services continues to be a key issue for local communities across the borough as a whole, whether from urban or more rural areas. The Committee received a significant amount of evidence as part of the review and undertook a series of visits to GP practices and other sites across the borough in order to scrutinise current arrangements in place, gain a better understanding of both the challenges and opportunities relating to GP access and the quality of care provided.

In particular, the evidence gathering sessions and site visits focused on:

- Key issues relating to 'Access' to GP services, drawing on survey findings and other evidence on GP appointments, opening hours, out-of-hours etc;
- Issues relating to the quality and experience of care;
- GP Access and quality of care in the broader context of service developments/initiatives relevant to the review topic

The Committee members acknowledged the input of GP practices to the review and expressed their thanks to their practice managers. The Committee also expressed its thanks to Newcastle Gateshead CCG, NHS England Cumbria and North East, Healthwatch Gateshead and Gateshead Community Based Care Ltd. for their contributions to the review.

The Committee note that a strong partnership approach is essential to ensure appropriate, timely and quality GP services can be accessed by Gateshead residents. Patients themselves also have a key role to play in providing feedback to their practice.

It was reported to Committee that Practice Action Plans were developed by all practices working with Newcastle Gateshead CCG and NHS England and are reviewed and updated annually. In continuing to develop these plans in the future, it was recommended that a specific focus is placed on ways individual practices can enhance access to GP services for their patients and actions that can be taken in this area. It was also noted that practice facilitators will continue to support practices in taking these actions forward.

The headline findings of the review acknowledged the opportunity to build upon existing work and continue the direction of travel set by local NHS Partners and GP practices themselves to enhance access to GP services in Gateshead. Progress against recommended priorities and actions to date were provided to the Committee.

RESOLVED -

- i) That the information be noted
- ii) That a further letter be sent to the Department of Health from the Committee seeking clarification on the how the bursaries of £20,000 for areas experiencing difficulties in recruiting GPs into training can be accessed by our local CCG.
- iii) That further updates be provided to the Committee in due course.

CHW41 ANNUAL WORK PROGRAMME

The Committee received a report setting out the provisional work programme, review topics and case studies for the Care, Health and Wellbeing OSC for the municipal year 2017-18.

RESOLVED -

- i) That the review topic and case studies for 2017-18 be agreed
- ii) That the OSC's provisional work programme for 2017-18 be endorsed and referred to Council on 8 June 2017 for agreement.
- iii) That further reports be brought to Committee to identify any additional issues which the Committee may be asked to consider.

Chair.	 	_										